KEYHAVEN BARN
What is today known as Keyhaven Barn until very recently included the house behind it now called Bellairs and this whole plot of land was originally part of the Newlands Estate.
The 1841 Tithe Map records that Milford covered 4,518 acres and the Newlands estate was 1645 acres of that in mainly the west side of the parish. The estate was developed by Mary Anne Theresa Whitby and it passed through generations of her family until it reached her great grandson, George Cornwallis West
George led a very lavish life style and as well as the Newlands estate, the family also owned extensive lands in Ruthin, north Wales. His extravagant lifestyle caused George to very quickly get quite heavily into debt and despite several attempts to reverse his fortunes he was declared bankrupt in March 1916 owing very substantial sums of money. An accountant, F. Salaman, was appointed trustee of the estate.
Thomas Miles who was a grocer and farmer in Milford, with the help of a mortgage from Lloyds bank, bought Aubrey Farm from the estate for £5,300 in 1921. The sale agreement stated that F. Salaman covenanted to cover all duties incurred by the Cornwallis Wests.

It is possible that Thomas Miles defaulted on his mortgage because in September 1926 Lloyds sold Aubrey Farm to Fred Edgar of Walkford Farm and John Fawcett of Manor Farm for £5,050.
[Keyhaven Barn  - 1979 outlined in red below]
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In 1932 Major Ivor Mackenzie Bellairs [RAF ret.] bought the piece of land from Aubrey Farm that is todays Bellairs House and Keyhaven Barn. At this time there was only the old barn on the site and the sale agreement stated that only a private house can be built on the plot but the existing barn could be converted for use as a cottage or as a private yachting club. This is interesting and relevant because in 1939 Major Bellairs was involved in the formation of Hurst Castle Sailing Club and some of the early meetings were held there.
The Major married in 1932 and his wife did live in Keyhaven with him initially. She died in Eastbourne in 1967 several years after the Major but she did not inherit his estate

Major Bellairs housekeeper was Lucy Hayward and she worked for him for more than 16 years and nursed him through illness. When he wrote his will in 1956 he left her all his worldly possessions unless she died before him or ceased to work for him in which case his estate would go to his cousin Mrs. Madge Bellairs of Hereford.

Therefore following his death at the Walcombe Hotel in Stratford on Avon in 1957 Lucy Hayward inherited Keyhaven Barn and the associated house. 
Following her marriage in 1960 she sold the property to a member of the Harmsworth family, of newspaper publishing renown. The property was established as a trust and Joan Harmsworth, the divorced wife of Alfred Harmsworth, lived there. She remained there until 1979 when Nicholas and Sally Potter bought it.

The Potters sold it to Picton Investments in about 1992 and in 1999 the current owners Patricia and David Banks moved in.

Although the house was known locally as Bellairs it was never actually officially called that as the whole plot was known was Keyhaven Barn.

In 2017 the Banks decided to turn the barn into a house for their own occupation and the property is now officially split into two. The original house is now called Bellairs for the first time and the old barn is now a residence called Keyhaven Barn.

For further information visit the MOSHRS website which is a core part of its Bringing History Home project supported by the Heritage Lottery Fund and Milford-on-Sea Parish Council. 

https://www.milfordhistory.org.uk/content/history/buildings-and-monuments/buildings-and-monuments  
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